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COMMISSIONER OF LABOR

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY COMPLATINANT

VS.

RUBY CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. RESPONDENT

DECISION AND ORDER OF
REVIEW COMMISSION

Before STOWERS, Chairman, UPTON and STANTON, Commissioners.

PER CURIAM:

A Recommended Order of Hearing Officer Herbert B.
Sparks, dated Dec. 23, 1975, is before the Commission for review.

Having reviewed all elements of the record in this
case, it appears to the Review Commission that the evidence as
presented herein 1s not sufficient to sustain a change of the
subject serious wviolation to a nonserious. It is reversible
error on the part of the Hearing Officer to apply penalty aj-
justment factors '"in extenuation and mitigation . . . in assessing
. . . the type of violation." Transcript, p. 7. 1In his Findings
of Fact, the Hearing Officer holds the Respondent to be in "tech-
nical violation'" of the cited standard and later reduces the charge
to nonserious on the basis of two supposedly similar precedental
cases: Jackson Construction, OSHRC 18,883, in which certain ex-
tenuating factors went to reducing the penalty, not the citation
itself, and Ward Engineering, KOSHRC #151, in which the subject
trench was only 6 feet, 10 inches deep, compared to Respondent's
11 foot deep trench involved herein. It is found by the Commission
therefore, that the evidence on the record does not factually
support a change in the citation to nonserious, and the Hearing
Officer erred in that he so found.

Nor does there appear to be good and sufficient reason
to reduce the proposed penalty of $800 to $175. It is found that
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the penalty assessment criteria were properly applied by the
Department of Labor, and we can find no cause to disturb that
result.

Therefore, it is the unanimous decision of the
Commission that the Recommended Order of the Hearing Officer
be and it hereby is REVERSED. It is further ordered that the
citation charging a serious violation of 29 CFR 1926.652(b) and
the proposed penalty of $800 be REINSTATED as initially charged
and proposed by the Department of Labor.

All other findings of the Hearing Officer not incon-
sistent with this decision are hereby affirmed.

///Q’//f 7 j\,

L "Stowers, Chairman

/s/ Charles B. Upton

Charles B. Upton, Commissioner

/s/ Merle H. Stanton

Merle H. Stanton, Commissioner

Dated: March 5, 1976
Frankfort, Kentucky

DECISION NO. 241
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This is to certify that copy of this Decision and
Order has been served by mailing or personal delivery on the
following:

Commissioner of Labor (Messenger Service)
Commonwealth of Kentucky
Attention: Honorable Michael D. Ragland

Executive Director for

Occupational Safety and Health

Honorable Kenneth E. Hollis (Messenger Service)
General Counsel
Department of Labor
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
Attention: Thomas M. Rhoads
Assistant Counsel

Mr. J. M. Field, President (Certified Mail #456136)
Ruby Construction Co., Inc.

3837 Fitzgerald Road

Louisville, Kentucky 40216

This 5th day of March, 1976.

,//) //”> |
et I é) (AN /7%‘/““"«

Iris R, Barrett
Executive Director
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COMMISSIONER OF LABOR

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY COMPLATINANT

VS.

RUBY--CONSTRUCTION -COMPANY; "INC:~ . RESPONDENT.-

NOTICE OF RECEIPT OF
RECOMMENDED ORDER, AND
ORDER-OF -THIS COMMISSION

All parties to the above-styled action before this
Review Commission will take notice that pursuant to our Rules
of Procedure a Decision, Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law,
and Recommended Order is attached hereto as a part of this
Notice and Order of this Commission.

You will further take notice that pursuant to Section
48 of our Rules of Procedure, any party aggrieved by this de-
cision may within 25 days from date of this Notice submit a
petition for discretionary review by this Commission.

Pursuant to Section 47 of our Rules of Procedure,
Jurlsdlctlon in this matter now rests solely in this Comm1351on,
and it is hereby ordered that unless this Decision, Findings of
Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Recommended Order is called for
review and further consideration by a member of this Commission
within 30 days of this date, it is adopted and affirmed as the
Decision, Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Final Order
of this Commission in the above-styled matter.

Parties will not receive further communication from
the Review Commission unless a Direction for Review has been
filed by one or more Review Commission members.
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Copy of -this Notice and Order has been served by
mailing or personal delivery on the following:

Commissioner of Labor
- Commonwealth of Kentucky
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
Attention: Honorable Michael D. Ragland
Executive Director for
Occupational Safety & Health

Honorable. Earl_ M. Cornett _.

General Counsel

Department of Labor

Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Attentionm:-— Thomas M. Rhoads
Assistant Counsel - -

Mr ==J:--M.—Fields--President—=  (Certified--Mail-J#456061)= -
- Ruby Construction Co., Inc.

3837 Fitzgerald Road- :

Louisville, Kentucky 40216

This=23rd day of December, 19757

U A et

Iris R. Barrett
Executive Director



KENTUCKY OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH

REVIEW COMMISSION

KOSHRC #7170 =

COMMISSIONER OF LABOR .
COMPLAINANT

COMMONWEALTH -OF -KENTUCKY - :
VST DECISION,. FINDINGS OF FACT,
CONCLUSIONS_OF. LAW, AND __
RECOMMENDED ORDER
RUBY- CONSTRUCTION--COMPANY, =&
) RESPONDENT

INCORPORATED

Hon<~ Thomas=Rhoads; Assistant Counsel, Department of Labor,
Frankfort, Kentucky, for Complaingant

Mr. J.M. Fields, President, Ruby Construction Company, for
the Respondent '
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An inspection was made on June 6, 1975, by the Kentucky
.Department of Labor, Division -of Occupational.Safety and Health
at:aiplacézof»employment*locatedfin.Jefferson Couﬂty, Kentucky,
at or near-Wathen Lane.and. Seventh Street Road, Shively, Kentucky,.
rand on the basis of the inspection it was alleged in a citation
dated -June 25, 1975 that the Respondent violated the provisions of
KRS'Chapter 338 (Kentucky Occupational Safety and Health Act of

1972) in the following respects, which was-alleged to be a serious

violation.



There was a citation issued against Respondent and that -

citation was protested,:that;being;citation,which,alleged;a vio- -

lation of 29 CFR 1926.652 (b) (as adopted by 803 KR52-030), a

description of the alleged violation being as follows:

"Violation-—of -the sides—of—the-trench-on-Wathan-Lane—
were inadequately shored in that the plywood sheeting
provided covered only a four (4) foot long eight -(8)

foot high section of the 20 foot long eleven (11) foot
deep:-trench, only one (1) cross brace three (3) inches.
by-ten=(10)=inches:approximately two and one half (2%) _
feet=longs=wassprovided;z=-approximately-three:3):=feet from .-
thesbottomsef<«the~trench::=<This: trench.was in .clay.and. __.
sand=from-:thezbottom=to -an—approximate=five-(5):-foot-—
heighti*+ From=the=five{5)-foot=level=to *the--top ‘of “the
trench=was=clay.soil:= An-employee-working=in theitrench—:
was not.protected-from:-thé hazard of moving .ground or. ..
cave—-ins." _—-

The—date-by -which:-the=glleged=violation=was—to—bercorrected was——

July -7, 1975.

The: procedural pertinent information and- dates-.are as -

follows:

1.

2.

Inspection of the premises mentioned above -~ June 6, 1975.

~.Citation._issued June. 25, 1975 listing one (1) serious

violation of the Acts and Standards.

Proposed- penalty for the contested standard herein in
guestion was $800.00 and the abatement date was July. 7,
1975. :

“Notice-of -Contest was-received-July "33 °1975; contesting. .

the above named item.

Notice of Receiptiof Contest was mailed July 8, 1975.

— Certification of Employer Form was-received:-July 17,-1975.-



7. Complaint was received July 9, 1975. No formal answer
was filed herein, but no complaint was made of same by the
Department, _either prior_to. the: proceedings or during
the hearing.

8. Case was assigned to a Hearing Officer on August 19, 1975;
the hearing was scheduled and held on September 29, 1975
at 10:00. a.m. at the Conference Room in the Department_of
Labox, Third Floor,. Legal_ Arts. Building,_Louisville,.

Kentucky.:

9.--A deposition.of ‘the Compliance Officer was held at the
samelocation on-August-14, 1975-at or about the hour

of =1t 00-pursuant=to—an=order- by “the Review Commission”
datedsAugirs

- takimgzef-=saids:

Thé?aforesaid:hearingimas;heldzunder:theiprqvisionszof;KRSz;;f

%z 338:0715H4).;-one-of--the-provisions-dealing=with-the safety and—-—

§ ‘ healtthi-of semployeeszwhich=authorizedsithe:Reviiew==Commission=to-hear .

[ and;rule?onrappeaiS%irom:citations;inotificationfandfvariance54v*
issued:under-the .provisions-of..this-Chapter; and - to adopt and-pro--

§ mulgate: rules—and-regulations:with. respect.to procedural.aspects-of-.
the -hearing<=-Under=the.provisions:of KRS 338.081; the hearing was—-
authorized=by sprovisions—of -said Chapter—and=such-may-be~—conducted

by a Hearing Officer-appointed-by the-Review Commission to serve-in
itsrplace:— After hearing and appeal, _the Review Commission may
sustain; modify.or-dismiss:the citation or penalty._
After-hearing--the-testimonyzof-sthe-witnessesy-having=considered-:
samey‘together'wiﬁh the exhibits filed--and the stipulations and
feprésentations;of»the:partiesT:it:is'concludedwthat»thersubstantialm
evidence--on -the record considered-as a.whole'supports-thevfollow—'v—

ing,Findihgszof,Fact.



FINDINGS OF FACT

Jurisdictibﬁ~of7the—pérties in. the subject matter and due
and timely notice of the hearing is;found by thé Hearing Officer.
Respondent was in technical violation of the citation herein
in guestionizand:=the:.record:adequately:reflectszthis: by preponderz—-
ance of the evidence.

pipewhich: weretwenty —(20)=feet=long=in -a trench=which:was=two={2)z= -

eight=(8)Ffeetin-widthsat -the—=tops==Plywood-sheeting:-was=being——7 -

used=to shore=the=trench=herein =in questionsThe. sheetings=asslsz=7 =

evidenced=by=the~photographs:-that-werezentered=as evidences-consisted -

of -three-quarter-:inch:thick plywood, “four=(4)sfeet-widej eight(8)-=" -
feeléiopg;on*each:side:;;At;theEtime:the;Coﬁpliance;Offibér;wa&;A
present-there was one-crossbrace7 approximately three (3) by
ten..(10)-,- and.approximately. two_and _one-~half_ (2%) feet long. being
placed approXimately:three (3) feet above the bottom of .the trench.
it seems -to- be the. general consensus of-both,the,Compl;ancef -
Officer. and. the employees- on- the scene-that the soil-in the trench-
bottom~ofethewtrench,»the/remainingasixii6)~feet,wasiapproximately
all-of- a clay composition.. One employee was-in the trench placing

a crossbrace-in at the time the Compliance -Officer's observations.



It was determinea'that-thé intent was that the empioyees would
always remain between the plywood sheets when in the trench.

In utilizing Table P-2, which is to be used as a gﬁide-in
applying. this. standard,. and-based -on a finding. that-the soil should -
be:considered:izin ‘thei:soft;ssandyor filed-categoryy the=minimum—ss -~

requirements for trench shoring:--in a&trench~of~thi5wnature~would-be"f

. Uprightgﬁei%herﬁthree =(3) by zfours(4)z=inchesnor-twor:(2) s by.- 51X‘%6)~“*%*

:ioundgthat;ciose;sheet&ng;iﬁ:requ1rediin;5f

SRt Lt

-~ thiss type*of“81tuat10n;:;Closersheetlng*means:that:theregwouldmbem_MMf
no ~spaces:=:in-between=thezsheets~and:zwould:be rcontinuous.. throughout=s -
eachssidesof~a trench~of:=thisEnaturess==

Theruprightszutidiveds= n:thrs—51tuatimngwere“51ghtw%%) Tfeetsmwer
long;uwThesefelght‘18)*feetwpelcesdof'plywoodAfeli‘three‘13) feet -
short-of=the=top=of: the”trench;_gThere”waswonly onezpair—of=uprightsz==
used_in this trench...

It is .also-noted  that:in soil.of-this.nature:.and:in .a=trench-=:
of - thls w1dth,ﬂcrossbra01ng requlred,would”be.atAa minimumesix .(6)ei:
by eight=(8)=<inchess==:Crossbracing.in -this.instance  was-one:board==>
which-was-a: three=(3)- by ‘ten:(10):approximatelytwo and-one-half=-- -
(2%)= feet;1ong::zCrossbracingszarexrequiredfto<beta%maximumg£éur£::r
(4)-feetzapart-vertically:andzat six:foot=intervals==In"thismsitermi
uation:ihere;Was:only_the:one;crossbracezbeihgfutiiizedzzi_

As to the sloping requirements_ for.a trench of this-naturej._.

one_must utilize the Table P-1 which is found immediately after

1926.652:- (g) .. The angle of the slope,- using.the.dimensions-hereto-

-5~



fore set forth, two (2) feet ét the bottom, eight (8) feé£ widthi
at the top, and an eleven (11) foot deep trench would figgreéoqtﬁ'
to be approximately a 75° angle. Even in compacted angular gravels
there-4s a- sloping-requirement of at least-a trench being-laid—
TN s - back=63% @nd=2615:"° The ‘recommendedislopesfori:average soil:is=45%z 70 —

For%compacted*sharp;sand"SOLI“the—slope should be 33° 41', 1In

we ll=rounded==loose=sands=th é%réSfl'Op e=should~be=26%=34 Lam- e

= It:isgthegﬁihﬂingﬁofrthls Comm1551onﬁthat;at bestffhlsLSOLLnbrr

S - could:bé con51dered*average“5011“ugUnforinatelyi;therelwasgne,sgf;,

‘soid=analysis~performeds==As=torthegeneral=oOveraldsnature~of ~the=Z= "=

S soik%ﬁit:WaSinoted%th&fithéfE%hadﬁbééﬁ%ﬁ@%@ave—ins%and%iheieghadz

- ~been=ne=slippages==In-Tesponsextoz=questions=by=Re spondents=it-wass=

-determined=that=therezhad:-been-no-sloughing-or sliding:of zsoil=din-== - -

thls;area““< e e

It was--also. determined -that-there was asphalt on either side ~

: : - ofsthis=trénch=1. From-thestestimony>of:-the Compliance>z0fficery=his-: =

t

e bestrguesszwas=that: the asphalt ‘waszapproximatelsy &51x}45)“1nchesa,,a,

grm deep%%aIt?isEalséknotedzthatathereawasznOﬁstackedxexCavatedﬁmatﬁ%
S : erial=on=either=side~of:thertrench=to-complicaterthe=situations:".

?’“': o ' CONCLUSTONS OF EEAWS S o -

‘TheECompiaihaht%hHS%furﬁiShed%theﬁﬂearingﬁeffiberfwith&proofﬁagtc?

wieio o= -—  ofixthezwviolation-of sthersection=reflectimgitherprotestedrichargesss = o

definition-of -a serious violation under-the Act is "where. there is

—-6-



a substantial probability that death or Seiibus physiéal harm
could result froﬁ'the“condition‘which'existS”from'onemor'more
practices, means, methods, operations, or processes in a place of
employment: (unless-the-employer  could not-with the exercise-of—

reasonable:diligencezknows:the=violation)-:¥: -

The-record=-is-—devoid-of evidence-which would indicate .that

i there=was:z:a-. substantialz.probability: that:death-or:-serious:physical=:z .

—»aharmacautd;resuixéiromﬁtheiyioiatieh%ggWhi&eaﬁhiSEnouid%be%eon%%%%

.- sidereds=azhtechnicaldy:iseriousiswviolation;=theresaresvarioussyss

factarszinfextenuatienéand%mitigaiioh%ihaﬁamUStsbeétakeﬁ;intd

A accoungzinéassessingﬁthé%@enaktj%hnd%ﬁheﬁgzgggpfqﬁﬁoiafibﬁﬁﬁyiwﬁé
- " * g l-ﬁ’f o o

e AR st e IS

Zan employerswass=foundsimn s o 0 L

=700 . "technically:-serioussviolationsofathestrenchsmshoringirequirementsss. -

ofﬁlQ26%552&#@)%because;thestrenchEWaliSiatgthegtime:of:inspectionzz;qu

within;all?pfdbabilityﬁstoodﬁsafely%at:90Qasinceitheyzwere?dryg;;%~>~

. Althoughoit-was-~.agreed—that.-the-materials:in which. the_ trench.was -

i ~dugiwouldzdioosertheirscementedzpropexrtiesiwheniwetgsithetiremoteness=of=3

s . possibility=of=colklapse=of=thestrench=warranted-a: reduction=ofxthei==- -

proposedspeénaltyiifrom=$6 0051007t $50500.539 0

It i's- alselmoted=that:thig+Commissioni=in:previouszcasessaspecssass:

s ificaliyé#iSii?Commiséionengéf%LéboﬁﬁECommonwea&thaofsKentucky;y;;%Fr

Ward:Engineering,«a citationswasssustained:under+this:samexstandard; =

e 29 CFR71926.652:7(b)where:the sidessof a trench:were:more:than:five. va =
(5)feet in depth and:more-than- -eight:feet-in length:and.they.--

were not -shored,. .sheeted, braced;sloped;:0r otherwisessupported =

-7 -



by means bf sufficient strength to preclude collapse. In the

Ward case there were two employees working in a trench one hundred

ten (110) feet long, six (6) feet, ten. (10) -inches deep, nine (9)

feety—seven-—(7)-inches-wide,and-:a-penalty-of=$175 00 Was=pro==i.

- posed=and«wassapproved:bysthis: Commissionibysitssifinalsorderizs

is—“also-noted-that--the violation-was--deemed=to be othersthan-seriousiz=

BeCause;of;therattempts;;npt;onlyi@t;shofing};buf;at;sheétingjj;m

?f!‘théﬁtfénéhgﬁefeih%iniQuQstiohﬁéahdéaiso%bééauSefofgtheSnatux%éiﬁi

J:‘**théisoii;befng;g;ayggndéclaj;gﬁd:sénd;althéidepthsﬁhéfeiofbré%inﬁéﬁiéi

dicatedy=and=becauserof--the*naturexofisthesmaterialion«ei therssdieshe e

“of sthesftrenchy2it 4's “be lieved=thatsaspenalty-reductionitosthe

= camount=oF=$1 7500, A e s foundediii=this:‘cases== Thefirecordsihdicate sk

 that-there>were=no=cave=inss=sloughimgisliding, =groundsmovementysssm:

orxrupt@réSéofithe?soiif%%Théééffaciors;shouidébé?takeﬁﬁintbzmenizu#mgm

sideration%in;édditibh%to»the%goodvféith?éfféft9¥onfbehaiféofﬂthei
Respondent; Ruby=Construction, in this=instance.
Tt is ‘alsolnoted:that:while! theCompliance=0f ficerdeemedwsit to =

be ia: serious»violationi»he igavesthirty:-i(30)3:days:to-correct=thiszzs—s. _

s yiolationisthe dnspection=beingsheld>on«Juné: 6y 19753 and=thei

“abatement=date~of ~thiszviolationizbeingialulyasdly; =19 7542

Undéri-thezcircumstances=set::out=hereinabove;=it._ does:notsx
appear-that: purposes+of sthe ‘Act: would:be fulfilledy=nor=thatijustice ==
wouldz:be Zserved=by-assessing:=thezpenaltyiin the proposed=amounty=s- . -

thus:the penalty:for~this violation .should: bée ireduced:to $175.00. % =

—-8— ...



RECOMMENDED ORDER

IT IS ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the citation herein in
question charging a serious violation:shall be and the same is
,hefeby;reducedgio-an?otherathaﬁlseriousaviolétionéand%theécitation%#:m
;iszheﬁebyégpstainedég;Thegpropoaedjpenaltywqfﬁ$8OQ%OQﬁsha&L;be;zgi;,w,

and_theésamewiswhereby4reduced—ter$175w00M—iThisrvioiation“mustf~—,

"wbe :corrected.without.delay, . butino..laterzthan: flfteen;JJSJAdaYS“

from -thezdates Of~thlS RecommendedﬂOrdér%

HERBERT B. SPARK’S
R Tt A Tovmin o TEmTns D HEARTINGEOPRPRICER === KOSHRGE::
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